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Introduction

| spent most of my first 29 years in the Brutus area. When introduced, |
proudly «id that | was from Brutus, Michigan. | lived in Chippewa County for
the next 32 years which is only a one hour drinenf Brutus. | moved back to
Brutus again in 2005.In a way, this book started in 1966. | was at college and
getting a degree in history. My thesis was about the Great Depression in Emmet
County. | interviewed many people at that time. My first book wheuw the
Ayr School and community. My second book was about the Brutus Mennonite
community. Although there is some duplication among the books, most of this
book is new material.

This history will mostly cover the years from 1874 to 1950. | see four main
periods in Brutus history. The pioneer era was 1874 to 1894. The busy lumber
mills period was 1894 to 1920. After 1920e area became primarily a farming
community. After 1950, farming declined and the area became a charming rural
community for peoplewho went elsewhere to work andnaybe had a hobby
farm, or hunting propertyPeople loved the security of owig rural acreage.
This is still the character of Maple River Township.

As late as 1873 only 150 white people lived in all of Emmet County. These
people lived at Petoskey, Harbor Springs, Cross Village, and Mackinaw City. The
key to land settlement was accessibility to a railroad. Railroads sold their
granted lands to finance construction of their lines. The GR&l R.R. reached
Petoskey in 1873 andated service in 1874. Settlement of Emmet lands was
also delayed pending the legal settlement of previous Indian treaties covering
the area.

The Maple River Township area may not have been settled by anyone,
ever,before 1874. The Indiarhad their settlenents near navigable waterhis
writer has documents that show all the original owners of each parcel.
Surprisingly, about 5000 acres were privately owned before 1874. This land was
given to companies, contractors, and persons in payment for services fpve
the federal government, but they coulabt settle on their lands at that time.
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The Old Stagecoach Road

This road was built to facilitate the movement of mail between Petoskey
and Cheboygan. Freight and passengers used it also. A railroaledeac
Petoskey in 1874, before the rails reached Cheboygan so mail followed this
road after 1874.

The History of Cheboygan County and Village, by W.H. Ware 1836
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of legislaturein 1871. This road runs from Cheboygan Village to Little Traverse.
[It joined the Petoskeydarbor Springs road where the airport is today.] It was
begun in the autumn of 1872 and completed in the autumn of 1874. Its
construction was under the direction afohn McKay, Commissioner. Cost
$26,600. The change of the mail route was made in 1874. There are now three
GNALIA SIFOK ¢gleé& | 5SS| P

The above history states that Chandler of Cheboygan had the contracts
to dredge the inland waterway. There had been serith@ughts about using
the waterway as the mail route. When the State Road was built, it was laid out
in a straight direct route as much as possible. At Alanson, the route was later
changed to include the town, and was also changed to include Brutus.

The ailroads reached Mackinaw City from Cheboygan in late 1881 and
from Petoskey in July 1882. Presumably mail between Petoskey and Cheboygan
would have largely used rails after 1882, and the use of the State Road must
have dropped substantially. Old maps rate the likely location of the road so
| have looked for remnants of our old State Road

The Maple River was near the npdint of the route and was the
location of an inn and post office. Abner Lee built an inn about where the
clubhouse of the Hidden River Golf Club is today. Valentine Brill bought the
property a few years later. Elmer Wutgelieved that his grandfather, George
Burgess, was the last proprietor of the old inn in 1911. The old road can be
clearly seen for much of the distance between Maple River and Riggsville Road.
It has been disturbed little and may look much as it dithanold days at many
places. Old original cuts and fills are very visible. The best place to see the old
road is on Biological Camp property near Riggsville Road in section 5 of Burt
Township.



The Brutus Post Office

The uniqgueness of the Brutus Posfi€H lies in that it was the first post
office in Emmet County that wasot near Lake Michigarandit existed in the
two towns of Butus that were two miles apart; and no one lived near the P.O.
when it wasstarted. The railroad came to Petoskey in 18Cheboygan did not
have a railroad yet so a stage/mail coach traveled between Petoskey and
Cheboygan. Thealfway point was near Brutus.The horses were changed or
rested here so a post office was officially formed even though no one lived in
the area. Abner Lee was the firgtostmaster. He named the towBrutus, after
his hometown in New York. Postmasters changed almost yearly for many years.

In 1882, the railroad was finished from Petoskey to Mackinaw City, and
Brutus [the name] was moved from MapRiver to the current location. The
post office was usually in the home or business of the postmaster so locations
changed frequently. Brutus started to grow rapidly in about 1897 when Nelson
Pier became the 16 postmaster and served for 28 years. Pierltai still
standing building as a post office building.

After more short time postmasters, Virgil Wallace served from 1933 to
1963. Wallace bought the unused train depot in about 1950, tore it down, and
used the lumber to build his new home/post officdohn Brill anchis son Ed
were rural mail carriers foover 50 years. Brutus hamhe rural route. Don Brill
became the 2% Brutus postmaster in 1963. Ahat time, he bought an older
building and moved it to Brutus. That is the building that was vacated in 2006.
Brutus mail now comes from Alanson but still retains the Brutus address.

The Township is Formed

The Dwnship of Maple River was organized 1876 and the first
election was held on April 3. It was Township 36 North, Range 4 West. In 1881,
much of what is now Littlefield Township waddedto Maple River Township.
From 1881 to 1888, Alanson, Oden, and area were in Maple River Township.
After Alaason grew to be a bigger town, Littlefiemecame an independent

township.



Homesteadingl87475

In August of 1874, some Emmet Coutdwnships were opened to sale
and homesteading, including the ddle River area. On April 13875, he
remainder of the county was opened to settlement. Tlaed was given as
homesteads orsold for cash. Civil War veterans were given 160 aareb
others migh get 80 acres. Most of the land was taken within four years. The
cash price was $1.25 per acr8everal speculators bought large tracts of land.

@ KS ¢ NI @S Nkhisold histSrbbaR, yiréten in 1884, described
homesteading in Emmet Counfhapter 19] tlis in the Petoskey Library.
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poured into the wilderness of Emmet County, and wilderness it indeed was.
There was not a road in any direction in the woods except one state road to
Cheboygan. The settlers who came in scattered over the county so that
settlement was genl, and log cabins werset in the numerous openings
the wilderness. This was during the hard times that prevailed throughout the
country, and many people were driven to seek homes in a new country where
but little capital was needed to obtain a statt.is always true that the first
settlers in a new country, especially upon government lands, are men with no
YSI yaoé

LY GKA& O2dzyide ySIENIe |Iff gK2 Ol
money enough to get themselves located on their land, and all begamaite
for subsistence together. The rush of settlers continued through the summer of
1876, and most of them had no idea of the trials and hardships incident to
pioneer life. They supposed that they would be able to obtain employment and
could earn enougho support themselves. The consequence was that early in
the winter of 187677, their supplies were exhausted, their money gone and
actual destitution of even the bare necessaries of life prevailed. This fact
became known and measures were taken for tiedief of those who were
destitute. The newspaper urged the importance of public action in this
YFEGOGSNXPD {dzZldL)t ASa 6SNB 20u0FAYSR Iy
K2YSaGSII RENAXXPd ¢KS ySEG &SI N LIS2Lx S
an era of prosperityand NR g G K g1 & 0S3dzy d¢
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TheEarliestPioneer Families

Abner andEugenid_eewere certainly the first official residestof Maple
River TownshipAs soon as the area was open for settlemdie built the Inn
on the banks bthe Maple RiverThe first sixamilies listed below claimed their
homesteads in 1874, and the others (alphabetical order) also owned land and
livedin Maple River Township by 1878lost received free homesteads, but a
few paid cash. The section location of their proged given andhe year of
purchase or claiming is noted.

Lee
Mindel
McKenzie

Bathke
Brill
Burns
Burbee
Crapsey
Dettwiler
Foss
Hurd
Lewis
Lusk
Mika

Mortenson

Park
Pine
Powell

Porterfield

Sauder
Stenzil
Wilcox
Wooden

Abner
Chris
C.

August
Val
Patrick
Aaron
Isaac
Abe
Mary
George
Warren
Isaac
Ernest
Christian
Henry
Ted
Ben

R.
Jacob
August
Horace
Henry

NE 23 1874
SW21 1874
NE 34 1874

NW 29 879

NE 23 1877

Ayr 1876

NE 32 1877
N. Ayr 1876
SW 20 1879
SW 17 1877

SE 34 1877
NW 22 1876

SW 31 1876
SW 28 1877
NW 6 1876

SE 10 1877
SW 32 1876
NW 21 1875
SW6 1877
SW 19 1879
NE 29 1876
NW 34 1875
SE 12 1876

10

Sherman
Green
Pokrandt

Blumke

Brubacher

Brush
Case
Crump
Dimling
Hurd
Kage
Longaker
McCarty
McPhee
Mummert
Percy
Plum
Powell
Sanford
Snyder
Strayer
Winkler
Woodruff

Daniel
George
William

William
Jonas
Charles
John
Daniel
John
Cyrus
William
William
Patrick
Henry
John
Stephen
John
Frank
Marzum
Elias
John
Gustavus
Thomas

SE 21 1874
SE 30 1874
SW 28 1874

SW 321876
SE28 1879
SW 26 1878
SW 34 1876
SE 31 1875
NW 28 1877
SE 34 1875
SW29 1876
SE 29 1877
NE 34 1877
SE 32 1878
SW 19 1878
SW 22 1877
SE 28 1877
NE 21 1875
NW 321876
NW 30 1875
NE 27 1875
SW18 1877
NW 27 1876
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Visiting Brutus and Ayr ii878

An employee offhe Petoskey City Recowisited Maple River Township
in July of 1878. He intended to sell newspaper subscriptions and write a story
about the area. This story has been edited and shortened. It is in Petoskey
library microfilms of July 25, 1878.

a! FS¢ RlIea 323 GKAY1lAYy3I LISNKIF LA
of Peteskey, we determined to make aigrto Maple River. Mr. Beecher who
has charge of the mail route from Petoskey to Cheboygdfered us a seat in
his vehicle. We did not stop to interview any of our friends on the State Road
until we got to the Maple River area. We reached the residence of Horace
Wilcox, some 15 miles fromown. We made the acquaintance of Clayton
Wilcox, the first white boy born in the township. We strolled over the quarter
section and found it to be good land. Some 20 acres are cleavd Wilcox
believes that grapes can be successfully grown in thistopuiohn Case and
Cyrus Hurd have adjoining farms 180 acres with about the same amount of
improvements as Mr. WilcoXNlearby standghe domicile of Patrick McCarty
Pat was absent and his fierce and rathetatiking frau had no desire to be
interviewed or subscribe to thdRecord We departed for the homestead of
Theron Woodruff, passing over some of the very best of land and a fine field of
wheat belonging to John Strayer. We found Mr. Woodruff harvesting wheat.

Next to Woodruff is Stephen Percy whad just harvested his wheat. It
Is pretty generally conceded that Mr. Percy is the hardest working man in the
neighborhood. The next man that we found wadarvin LewisAll of his crops
look first rate Our wanderingsrought us to the house of Fnlk Powell. He is
the township supervisot Y R RS LJzié O2dzyieé &adz2NIBSe 2 NJ
gl a GKS FANRG 6KAGS OKAfR 02Ny Ay all
has two acres of beans that look remarkably well. We stayed overnight at
Powells. From Wt O2EQ& (2 GKA& LRAYGZ GKS f Iy
Emmet County. We headed north and came to the Maple River and Pellsville.
Here we had the pleasure of meagj William Pells and Henry Parketh well
known to manycitizens of this place. Aftestaying overnight at Pellsville, we
followed a trail two or threamilessoutheast through the woods without seeing
a house of any kind, until we came to Brutfsthe old town of Brutus]
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dThe river at this point is about twice the size of Bear C{Belar River
Petoskey] near its mouth and would afford as good water power as could be
asked. A mill will undoubtedly be built at this place. Mr. Brill, the proprietor of
the hotel at his place, has a large and wkdipt house and furnishes food for
man ad beast in their journeying between Petoskey and Cheboygan and
others who favor him with a call. This gentleman has some 20 acres in crops
that are looking well. Mr. Brill is postmaster of Brutus.

dTurning our faces once more toward Petoskey, discovered C.
McKenzie laboring hard to improve the condition of the road in front of his
abiding place. The failure to extend a railroad through his vicinity causes him
some annoyance to say the least. The township was officially organized about
two yearsago [1876]. One thing that has retarded its growth is the large
amount of land owned by speculators. To our readers in this township, we
return sincere thanks.

An employee ofThe Petoskey City Recodlso visited the settlers near
the Ayr Road in Oct@r of 1878, and published the story on October 10. As it
was hard to read, | will only mention the nasof settlers mentioned. These
were Alonzo Hart, Elias Snyder, M.M. Sanford, PaBugks, Abe Oberholtzer,
Augusus Lightningstar,Philo Ferguson, Amos Dietz, Martin Seymour, and
George Green.

First Marriages

The first marriage In Maple River Township was between two- non
residents on April 3, 1877. Seemingly these people came from Cheboygan on
the stagecoach and got married at éhBrutus Inn by a Justice of the Peace.
They continued on their way. The first marriage between residents was of
l dz3dzad . FGK1S FyR . f2yRAYIl t 201N yRI
husband had been the first adult man to die in the area.

The next marriage was of John Mummert and Henrietta &bbn
December 27, 1879. They budt house along Ayr Road. The minister was
Abram Dettwiler of the Mennonite Church who lived one mile away. Henrietta
died young and John a few years later. Barbara Dettwilaughter of Abram
Dettwiler married Eli Crump in 1882 and, Mary Ann Da#fsvmarried Amos
Brubaker in 1882.
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Living at Brutus in 1880

When the census taker counted Maple River Township in 1880, he took a
specialfarm census, and 22 farms were inclddesome fams were obviously
not counted, as theegular census showed 36 total farm$his farm census
included acreage facts about every crop and listed the numbers of livegtock.
will attempt to picture some of the living conditions of Brutus pionebys
looking at these numbers. In 1880, no railroads were in the area. Only one
small saw mill existed. There was no market for logsresss wereburned as
the land was cleared.

A surprising thinghat | found was hat only fivepioneers had horses
nine families had oxen, andne had a muleThereforemany pioneer families
hadno draft animalsHow did they clear the land? There was a lot of hard hand
labor. Considering the lack dforses, | am somewhat surprised by the number
of acres that were ckred by 1880Most farms had about Q5 acres under
cultivation while several had over 20 acres cleared.

After clearing the land, they all grew wheat, oats, potatoes, and corn.
Most planted apple trees but they were not producing yet. Nearly every yamil
had a flock of chickens. They had potatoes and eggs to eat. Some had a cow or
two and made butter. Many madmaple sugar and that was a cash grimr
them. Gardens were not mentioned in the census but they surely had them.
Most of the families in the 1&8Bcensus stayed for several years so they had a
certain level of success. This writer is amazed that they succeeded as well as
they did.

First Births
1% girl born in Maple River Cora Ped Powell 25 Nov 1876
1% boy born in Maple River HoraceClayton Wilcox 26 Apr 1877
Emma Kage 23 Apr 1877 Elum Crump 20 May 1878
Archie Case 3 Oct 1878 Sarah Longaker 18 Nov 1878
Anna Blumke 8 Jun 1879 Glen Sanford Sep 1879
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The First Deaths

This writer believes that there may be unmarked and forgotten graves in
Maple River Township. People settled the area in 1874 and cemeteries started
after many people had diedsome people may have been laat on their home
property. | searched the offial Michigan death records for the township. No
one died from 1874 to 1877 but 1878 was a very bad year.

Records say that the first was a baby boy Shibertine on March 14, 1878.
This name was probably Shaferbine. The parents were Harmon and Minnie and
| find very little record of them. Ae second was baby boy Sanford blay 5,
1878. His parents were longtime residents Mitchell and DiananaAViikke
(spelling?) died aftegiving birth to twins on September 13, 1878. Both babies
died about one month later. &h husband/father lived alone in the 1880
census. A father, William Pokrandt, died on October 21, 1878. He had three
young children. Others died before area cemeteries were formed.

The Ayr Post Office and Store

The Ayr Post Office was opened on Decemligr 1878. Patrick Burns
was the first postmaster. Titus Snyder built a store and post office building at
the Ayr corner. Snyder became the second postmaster in 1884 while also
operating the store. Most of the time, the storekeeper and postmaster were
the sane person. In 1885, Snyder sold the store and six acres to John
Higinbotham for $1200. Titus moved to Brutus and started another store.
Higinbotham had the store from 1885 to 1891. He moved to Ohio but kept the
building and rented it to others for severgears. Patrick Burns was the
postmaster for longer than anyone. He started again in 1894 and continued
until his death in 1908. The building was sold to Marion and Minnie Brown in
1908. The post office closed on December 31, 1909, and the area was bgrved
a rural carrier from Alanson. The Browns closed the store in 1914 and moved to
Conway. The old store building was a housing rental in 1920 when my great
grandfather lived in it. EImer Wurst remembered that in 1929, only a pile of
logs remained so it nai have been a log building.
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The Big Railroad

The first township railroad was the Grand Rapidfn&iana Railroad. It
ran from Indiana to Grand Rapids to Petoskey to Mackinaw City. The last leg
was finished in 1882 and influenced the rapid growth of the area. Stops were
made at Brutus in 18883 and the depot was finished in 1884. The GRaget
became the Pennsylvania Railroad. This was a very busy railroad for many
years. For a few years, Pellston was one of the biggest shipping points on the
line.

About 1910, a half mile siding was built from Brutus to the south. |
presume that it was made sthat trains could pass in opposite directions.
Passenger trains stopped running in about 1950 and the depot was torn down.
The freight trains stopped in about 1980 and the rails were removed. The
railroad bed is now a snowmobile trail from Mackinaw Gitytanson.
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